
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Friday, 20 May 2022 
11.00 am 
 
 
 
 
 

Hybrid Meeting - 18 Smith Square and 
Online 
 
 



 

 

 

Guidance notes for members and visitors 
18 Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ 
 
Please read these notes for your own safety and that of all visitors, staff and tenants. 
 
Welcome! 
18 Smith Square is located in the heart of Westminster, and is nearest to the Westminster, Pimlico, 
Vauxhall and St James’s Park Underground stations, and also Victoria, Vauxhall and Charing Cross 
railway stations.  
 
Security 
All visitors (who do not have an LGA ID badge), are requested to report to the Reception desk where 
they will be asked to sign in and will be given a visitor’s badge to be worn at all times whilst in the 
building. 
 
18 Smith Square has a swipe card access system meaning that security passes will be required to 
access all floors.  Most LGA governance structure meetings will take place on the ground floor, 7th 
floor and 8th floor of 18 Smith Square.  
 
Please don’t forget to sign out at reception and return your security pass when you depart. 
 
Fire instructions 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the green Fire Exit 
signs. Go straight to the assembly point in Tufton Street via Dean Trench Street (off Smith Square). 
 
DO NOT USE THE LIFTS. 
DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT PERSONAL BELONGINGS. 
DO NOT RE-ENTER BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
Open Council 
Open Council, on the 7th floor of 18 Smith Square, provides informal meeting space  
and refreshments for local authority members and officers who are in London.  
 
Toilets  
Unisex toilet facilities are available on every floor of 18 Smith Square. Accessible toilets are also 
available on all floors. 
 
Accessibility 
If you have special access needs, please let the meeting contact know in advance and we will do our 
best to make suitable arrangements to meet your requirements. 
 
Every effort has been made to make the building as accessible as possible for people with 
disabilities. Induction loop systems have been installed in the larger meeting rooms and at the main 
reception. There is a parking space for blue badge holders outside the Smith Square entrance and 
two more blue badge holders’ spaces in Dean Stanley Street to the side of the building. There is also 
a wheelchair lift at the main entrance. For further information please contact the Facilities 
Management Helpdesk on 020 7664 3015. 
 
Guest WiFi in 18 Smith Square  
WiFi is available in 18 Smith Square for visitors. It can be accessed by enabling “Wireless Network 
Connection” on your computer and connecting to LGA-Free-WiFi. You will then need to register, 
either by completing a form or through your Facebook or Twitter account (if you have one). You only 
need to register the first time you log on.  



 

 

 

The LGA also offers the Govroam network, a Wi-Fi network which gives Members seamless roaming 
internet access across multiple public-sector locations if you have also signed up for this service. 
This network is enabled throughout our Westminster building and allows Members and staff from 
other authorities who are part of the Govroam network to seamlessly connect to our Wi-Fi.  

 
Further help 
Please speak either to staff at the main reception on the ground floor, if you require any further help 
or information. You can find the LGA website at www.local.gov.uk  

http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
Fire Services Management Committee 
20 May 2022 

 

There will be a meeting of the Fire Services Management Committee at 11.00 am on Friday, 20 
May 2022. This will be a hybrid meeting - in the Victoria Room 18 Smith Square and Online via MS 
Teams. 
 

LGA Hybrid Meetings 
All of our meetings are available to join in person at 18 Smith Square or remotely via 
videoconference as part of our hybrid approach. We will ask you to confirm in advance if you will be 
joining each meeting in person or remotely so we can plan accordingly, if you wish to attend the 
meeting in person, please also remember to confirm whether you have any dietary/accessibility 
requirements. 18 Smith Square is a Covid-19 secure venue and measures are in place to keep you 
safe when you attend a meeting or visit the building in person. 
 
Catering and Refreshments: 
Once you have confirmed in advance of the meeting that you will be attending in person, along with 
any relevant dietary requirements, refreshments will be available in the meeting room. If the meeting 
is scheduled to take place at lunchtime, a sandwich lunch will be available. 
 

Political Group meetings and pre-meetings for Lead Members: 
Please contact your political group as outlined below for further details. 
 

Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223     email:     lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3263     email:     labgp@lga.gov.uk  
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224     email:     independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk   
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235     email:     libdem@local.gov.uk 
 

Attendance: 
Your attendance, whether it be in person or virtual, will be noted by the clerk at the meeting. 
 

LGA Contact:  
Jonathan Bryant 
Jonathan.Bryant@local.gov.uk - 07464652746 
 

Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of £9.00 per hour or £10.55  
if receiving London living wage is available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly 
people or people with disabilities) incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

Social Media 
The LGA is committed to using social media in a co-ordinated and sensible way, as part of a 
strategic approach to communications, to help enhance the reputation of local government, 
improvement engagement with different elements of the community and drive efficiency. Please feel 
free to use social media during this meeting. However, you are requested not to use social media 
during any confidential items. 
 

 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:labgp@lga.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
 

Fire Services Management Committee – Membership 2021/22 
 
Councillor Authority 

  

Conservative ( 5)  

Cllr Nick Chard (Deputy Chair) Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Eric Carter Shropshire and Wrekin Fire Authority 

Cllr Mark Healey MBE Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 

Authority 

Mr Roger Hirst Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 

Essex 

Cllr Rebecca Knox Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Andy Crump Warwickshire County Council 

Cllr David Norman MBE Gloucestershire County Council 

  

Labour ( 5)  

Dr Fiona Twycross (Vice-Chair) Greater London Authority 

Cllr Nikki Hennessy Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Cllr Greg Brackenridge West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Carl Johnson Tyne & Wear Fire & Rescue Authority 

Cllr Leigh Redman Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Sian Goding Bedfordshire Fire & Rescue Authority 

Cllr Jane Hugo Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Cllr Les Byrom CBE Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority 

  

Liberal Democrat ( 2)  

Cllr Keith Aspden (Deputy Chair) North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service 

Cllr Jeremy Hilton Gloucestershire County Council 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Roger Price Hampshire & Isle of Wight Fire & Rescue 

Authority 

Cllr Carolyn Lambert East Sussex Fire Authority 

  

Independent ( 2)  

Cllr Ian Stephens (Chair) Isle of Wight Council 

Cllr Frank Biederman Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 

Authority 

  

Substitutes  



 

 

Cllr Luke Frost Cleveland Fire & Rescue Authority 

Cllr Nigel Smith North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority 



 

 

 
 

Agenda 
 

Fire Services Management Committee 
 
Friday 20 May 2022 
 
11.00 am 
 
Hybrid Meeting - 18 Smith Square and Online 
 

 
 

 Item Page 
 

1.   Welcome, Apologies and Declarations of Interest 
 

  

 ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION  Page  

    

2.   Fire Reform White Paper 
 

  

 Jonny Bugg, Head of Home Office Fire Strategy and 
Reform Unit, to attend. 
 

  

3.   LGA/NFCC Sector-Led Improvement offer 
 

  

 Emily McGuinness, LGA Local Government Support, to 
provide a verbal update 
 

  

 ITEMS FOR NOTING  Page  

    

4.   Building Safety update 
 

1 - 4  

5.   National Fire Chiefs Council update 
 

5 - 16  

6.   Fire Standards Board update 
 

17 - 20  

7.   FSMC update 
 

21 - 24  

 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS  Page  

    

8.   Workforce update 
 

25 - 42  

9.   Building Safety - Personal Emergency Evacuation 
Plans 
 

43 - 48  



 

 

10.   Fit for the Future 
 

49 - 90  

11.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 March 
2022 
 

91 - 100  

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Friday, 8 July 2022, 11.00 am, Hybrid 
 



 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Building Safety Update 

 

Purpose of report 

For discussion. 

 

Summary 

This report aims to update members on the LGA’s building safety-related work since the 

committee’s last meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Charles Loft 

Position:   Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   020 7665 3874  

Email:    Charles.loft@local.gov.uk 

 

  

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That members note and comment on the LGA’s building safety related work.  

Action/s 

Officers to incorporate members’ views in the LGA’s ongoing building safety related 

work.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Building Safety Update 

Background 

1. Since the committee's last meeting, the Building Safety Bill has received Royal Assent;  
a date for the commencement of the Fire Safety Act has been set and the LGA has 
continued to work to support remediation. 

Remediation 

2. The LGA has already published case studies and a document on principles of effective 
regulation and have worked closely with Department of Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) officials and the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) to promote 
joint working in this area, including through webinars that have reached over 600 council 
and fire service staff and through the work of the Joint Inspection Team which DLUHC 
funds. 

3. Two related pieces of work are underway that will impact FRSs (Fire and Rescue 
Services): 

3.1. The DLUHC-led group Remediation Partners continues to work on a framework to 
support remediation, based on proposals for regional meetings between FRS and 
local authority environmental health teams in line with the Principles for Effective 
Regulation document. These regional meetings are expected to be based on the 
NFCC regions. The initial focus of activity is expected to be ‘missing buildings’, i.e. 
those with interim fire safety measures which have not applied for funding to begin 
remediation. 

3.2. Discussions are under way with DLUHC and NFCC to support a coordinated audit of 
risk within medium-rise residential buildings (11-18m). 

4. While it is clear that there are a number of buildings under 18m that present a risk to life 
as a result of the failure of the regulatory system over twenty years and the irresponsible 
behaviour of some industry actors, we do not have accurate data on the true extent of 
this problem; nor do we know how widespread the over-provision of waking watches may 
be.  

5. The LGA and NFCC therefore support the principle that we should improve our 
knowledge in this field. However, both organisations have conveyed to DLUHC that 
existing regulatory frameworks are not designed to prohibit excessively risk-averse 
behaviour, and it is unrealistic to think that a programme of inspection by either fire 
service or council regulators will be able to eliminate it, especially given the absence of 
powers to do so and the uncertainty around personal emergency evacuation plans 
(PEEPs). 

6. LGA officers have sought a clear steer from Government on when those parts of the 
Building Safety Act that relate to funding for remediation can be expected to commence 
and what their impact will be, and have stressed the need for the Government to set out 
clear expectations in regard to enforcement action. 

7. The Joint Inspection Team has secured funding for the next two years which will see it 
expand significantly. In effect it will triple in capacity by the end of this financial year. 

Page 2

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/london-borough-camden-and-london-fire-brigade
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/principles-effective-regulation-fire-safety-flats
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/principles-effective-regulation-fire-safety-flats


 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Building Safety Bill 

8. The Act received Royal Assent last month. There are a significant number of pieces of 
secondary legislation that will need to be passed in order to set up the new Building 
Safety Regime. There are also a number of questions we need to continue to ask. Those 
relating to FRSs are set out below: 

9. Will we end up with an effective relationship between the demands on FRSs made 
by the Building Safety Regulator and the funding available to expand capacity in 
the protection sphere? The NFCC has not been given the funding it asked for to deliver 
the Health and Safety Executive’s (HSE) plan. Discussions on the extent to which the 
plan needs to change to take account of this are ongoing.  

10. What will the impact be of the provisions protecting leaseholders on the ability to 
pay for remediation? We are seeking clarification from officials on the impact of the Act 
and associated measures. In particular it is currently unclear what will happen in blocks 
where there is no warrantee and no successful claim against the developer and the cost 
of remediation is too great to be covered by leaseholders within the cap. In theory the 
freeholder is expected to pay, but that is unlikely if the sum is large as freeholds are not 
particularly valuable; moreover the freeholder will in many cases be the leaseholders 
acting collectively.   

11. The chief concern here for FRSs is that the government wants councils and fire services 
to take enforcement action to drive remediation; this is not going to work if there is no 
funding available to pay for remediation (a related issue is that we do not yet know when 
these provisions commence and until they do it is likely that landlords will drag their feet 
to ensure they do not miss out on funding by acting before the support tis in place). 

12. How effectively will the Act be aligned in operation with the Fire Safety Act? The 
LGA and NFCC continue to seek to influence the HSE’s setting-up of the new regulator 
to ensure this alignment takes place. 

Fire Safety Act 

13. The Act will commence this month and commencement will be followed by regulations 
implementing most of the recommendations made by phase one of the Grenfell Tower 
inquiry. 

14. The Act will require responsible persons (RPs) to consider the need to update their fire 
risk assessment to take account of external wall systems. A Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) 
Prioritisation Tool will be launched alongside commencement. Its purpose will be to 
inform RPs of how urgent the need to review their FRA is, in order to spread out demand 
for the limited resource of fire risk assessors.  

15. FRSs will be expected to use he clarification provided by the act to support remediation. 
See paragraph 2 above. 

16. Following commencement of the Act the Home Office will lay regulations relating to the 
recommendations of the Grenfell Inquiry Phase One. Details will be circulated 
immediately prior to the meeting but when these regulations commence (which we 
anticipate is likely to be in the Autumn) they will result in FRSs receiving various items of 
information from Responsible Persons in some buildings, including (we expect): 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

16.1. Details of the materials and design of the external wall systems, including the level 
of risk posed and mitigations in place 

16.2. Floor plans (including the location of essential fire-fighting equipment) and a single 
page building plan  

16.3. Details of any lifts for use by firefighters and fire-fighting equipment which are out 
of order for a period of longer than 24 hours     

17. It will be necessary for FRSs to prepare for this change and consider how much 
information they are likely to receive and how best to deal with it. 

Implications for Wales 

18. The Fire Safety Act came into force in Wales in October 2021. Building regulations and 
fire and rescue services are devolved responsibilities of the Welsh Assembly 
Government, and the main implications arising from the recommendations of the Hackitt 
Review and the government’s response to it are on building regulations and fire safety in 
England. However the Welsh government has announced that it will be making the 
changes recommended in the report to the regulatory system in Wales, and the LGA has 
been keeping in contact to ensure the WLGA is kept informed of the latest developments 
in England. 

Financial Implications 

19. Although the LGA has set up the Joint Inspection Team, the cost of doing so is being 

met by DLUHC. Other work arising from this report will continue to be delivered within 

the planned staffing budget. 

Next steps 

20. Officers to continue to support the sector’s work to keep residents safe and reform the 

buildings safety system, as directed by members. 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.lease-advice.org/news-item/fire-safety-bill-comes-into-law-in-wales/


 
 
 
 
 
 

Trustees 
 
 

Page 1 of 11   
 

 
    

Fire Services Management Committee 

   

Date: Friday 20 May 2022 
 

  

Title:  NFCC Update 

  

Presented by: Mark Hardingham, NFCC Chair 

  

Contact: chair@nationalfirechiefs.org.uk  
 

 

1. Purpose 

1.1 This report provides an update on key work within the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC). 

2. General Update 

UK Fire Service Convoy Delivers Aid to Ukraine 

2.1 Three convoys of UK fire service kit and equipment have travelled to Ukraine over the last 

two months, providing vital life-saving equipment to firefighters.   

2.2 Organised by UK charity FIRE AID and International Development, the National Fire Chiefs 

Council (NFCC), EASST, and the wider fire industry, the convoys have also been supported 

by the Home Office and other government departments. 

2.3 Sixty fire vehicles – packed with hoses, helmets, thermal imaging cameras, generators, 

ladders, rescue equipment and protective equipment and other kit requested by Ukraine – 

have now been donated by UK fire and rescue services, fire authorities and the fire sector.   

2.4 The deployment of these donations is being supported by funding from the Home Office, 

Foreign, Commonwealth & Development Office, and the FIA Foundation. 

New Chief Operating Officer 

2.5 Susannah Hancock will be joining NFCC as Chief Operating Officer (COO) on 4 July.  She 

was appointed COO at the beginning of April following a full and in-depth selection process 

which saw more than 20 applicants.  Susannah is currently Chief Executive at the 

Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC). 

2.6 The role of COO has been filled on an interim basis by Steven Adams since May last year. 

Steven will continue in this role until Susannah starts on 4 July.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

mailto:chair@nationalfirechiefs.org.uk


   

Page 2 of 11 
 

 
    

3. Portfolio Update 

People Programme 

3.1 The programme has been scoping the work for 2022/23 with stakeholders including the HR 

Forum, Home Office, HMICFRS, programme and project boards. The key focus in addition to 

completing live projects, is to embed the existing products of the programme using Maturity 

Models as a primary tool, with a further focus on EDI and leadership development. 

Project Update 

Leadership Coaching and Mentoring 

Following a procurement exercise, the contract has been awarded to 

Coaching Focus who have existing experience with the FRS. 

The portal is an off-the-shelf product which has been customised and 

will be populated with a list of FRS coaches, mentors and champions 

who are in the process of being trained. To date, 31 FRS have 

engaged with the project, offering 29 qualified coaches, 29 mentors 

and 29 champions.  

It is free to all UKFRS, with the portal funded by the NFCC. It is on 

track to go live, once approved at the People Programme Board, in 

May 2022. 

Talent Management Framework 

The consultation on the framework was completed in December 

2021 with positive feedback from FRS. The technical editing, and 

final design have been completed and signed off at the People 

Programme Board in April 2022. It is due to be launched at the end 

of April/May 2022 

Supervisory 

Leadership 

Development  

The project awarded the contract for both the portal and the training 

programme development to Chartered Management Institute (CMI). 

The team are now working with CMI to focus on developing the 

training programme based on the feedback from the consultation 

conducted last year.  

The contract provides 2,000 free licences to the UK FRS over two 

years. The project will offer each UK FRS 20 free licences per year 

for operational and non-operational aspiring and existing first-line 

managers to support them at this crucial stage in their leadership 

development. 

Direct Entry This project was previously at risk of delivery but has had direction 

from NFCC Council on the delivery model. The option delivers a 

scaled down programme with 13 FRS initially committed as early 

adopters allowing a proof of concept. This approach does not rely on 

a fully sustainable funding model, with these FRS self-funding places 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 3 of 11 
 

 
    

on the programme with central funding from NFCC to coordinate and 

support the initiative. 

The project is now working with these FRS to refine the requirements 

of both the recruitment process and the training programme.  

Equality, Diversity 

and Inclusion  

The development of guidance for the EDI hub continues at pace with 

consultations for Equality of Access People with Dementia and 

Emerging Migrant Communities and toolkits on Gender Diversity, 

Neurodiversity and EDI Data having recently completed. The full 

suite of documents will be ready for sign-off, publication and launch 

in May 2022. 

A calendar of EDI notable dates of both NFCC events and national 

awareness dates will be published shortly. The continuing 

programme of Lunch and Learns is being planned with a recent 

session focussing on the Holocaust Memorial Day supported by a 

video created for the day filmed with South Yorkshire FRS. 

The project has been collating EDI research from across the sector 

and internationally and will be publishing this in a broader NFCC 

Research Hub along with a literature review identifying the key 

findings and gaps where future research may wish to focus. 

Recruitment  The recruitment hub staging site went live in February 2022 using 

ukfrs.com to ensure user functionality can also be tested as part of 

the consultation. Consultation review sessions took place in April 

2022 and preparations to present for sign off at Project and 

Programme Board are underway.  

The consultation on the firefighter job description and person 

specification resulted in a high level of responses and some 

challenges to the design of the output. Further engagement with 

CFO/CEs was conducted to establish if a solution that meets both 

the needs of FRS and the project can be identified. Following this 

engagement, a new design has been created which received positive 

feedback. This output is likely to go to Programme Board for sign-off 

in May 2022 to launch on the recruitment hub. The project is 

dependent upon this output to enable a review of the selection 

processes to ensure they do not deselect candidates unnecessarily 

and support the increase in diversity of firefighter recruits. 

The review of practical tests will continue beyond the launch of the 

recruitment hub. A procurement for research is out for tender, with 

contracts likely to start at the end of May 2022.  

Working Patterns  The products of this project are now published on ukfrs.com. It holds 

the full toolkit consisting of Working Patterns Case Studies 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 4 of 11 
 

 
    

(published), Case Studies Implementation Toolkit and Research 

Paper – Challenges in Maintaining On-Call Working Patterns.  

Review of 

National 

Occupational 

Standards  

The functional analysis that was previously commissioned has now 

commenced using the consultant RedQuadrant who intend to deliver 

a high-level functional model by April. Further functional analysis will 

need to be continued to complete this work. A survey looking at the 

current use of National Occupational Standards will support this work 

and was completed at the end of March 2022. 

Evidence Base 

for Health and 

Wellbeing 

The project has commissioned a piece of research with Nottingham 

Trent University that will meet the majority of the project deliverables 

and clarify what the requirements would be for nationally coordinated 

health & wellbeing support. 

The project is also collaborating with AFSA on a piece of research 

specifically relating to suicide prevention that will also provide 

evidence to support the development of national support. 

Following on for the Mental Health at Work Symposium supported by 

HRH Prince William, the project is also maximising the impact of the 

commitment and related support, working with the Royal Foundation 

to signpost support and guidance and look for further opportunities. 

Digital and Data Programme 

3.2 The current data priorities for the programme are set out below.  

Project Update 

Strategy: Aligning 

data strategy and 

developing a 

national fire data 

collection system 

A review of the current NFCC Digital & Data Strategy will ensure 

alignment with Fit for the Future and Home Office and HMICFRS 

data strategies. It is anticipated that the review will produce separate 

but complementary strategies for both Data and Digital for the sector. 

NFCC engagement has included participation in the Fit for the Future 

review workshops as well as engagement with key individuals and 

workstreams such as the Community Risk Programme and NFCC 

Data Portal. 

Extensive engagement with Home Office and HMICFRS 

representatives has taken place including NFCC hosting strategic 

stakeholder workshops in December 2021 and January 2022. 

The programme has secured an initial six-month full-time 

secondment for the National Data Lead to drive forward the data 

priorities within the programme. This role will also inform and lead 

the data analytics capability. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 5 of 11 
 

 
    

National Data 

Standards 

The draft Data Management Fire Standard was shared for 

consultation in March 2022. Feedback will be reviewed in May 2022 

to inform the final version to be published in June 2022.  

Using the consultation feedback, the programme will identify the key 

products that will be required to support FRS implementation of the 

standard. A business case for these products will be developed in 

Q2 with development expected across the rest of the financial year.  

Data Collection There is agreement between NFCC, Home Office and HMICFRS of 

the merits of collaborating to deliver a National Fire Data Collection 

System (NFDCS) that will act as the prime repository for all national 

fire data sets, readily accessible by key stakeholders to plug their 

analytics capability into. 

The two strategic stakeholder workshops referenced above have so 

far secured agreement on the scope of the system, who will lead and 

resource the project and an outline timetable for the delivery of the 

first element. To support this, the programme has agreed to lead a 

project to map the current fire data landscape to baseline and inform 

requirements for such a system. 

The scope of this work is nearing agreement with the Home Office, 

and all three phases of work are expected to commence within Q1.  

The Home Office are leading detailed user research into the desired 

functionality of the system across Q1 which the Digital and Data 

Programme will be supporting.  

Data Analytics The D&D Programme has secured the resources to fund a fulltime 

NFCC Data Lead into this role for an initial 6 months. The initial 

focus of the analytics capability will be to address key NFCC 

transformation priorities, including gaining access to the third-party 

national datasets required to inform the new community risk 

methodology, and evaluating the effectiveness of Fire Standard 

implementation. 

As the analytics capability scales it will seek to address wider data 

and analytics requirements and further establish and embed the 

designed operational processes to ensure value is being delivered. 

The ambition for the capability will be to provide national collation, 

transformation and presentation of key data sets; capturing, 

prioritising and modelling business use cases from the UK FRS; 

control and governance to the use of data analytics across the 

service, and centralisation of relationship management with key 

central government stakeholders and other organisations. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 6 of 11 
 

 
    

Across 2022/23 the programme plans to roll out a proof-of-concept 

implementation of the designed national data analytics capability, 

with Q1 focussing on scoping the approach to this activity.  

Engage, 

Promote, 

Motivate, 

Collaborate 

Following a successful recruitment campaign, the programme now 

has a cadre of circa 17 volunteers from the existing fire sector 

analyst’s community who are willing to support the NFCC Data Lead 

in progressing the work of the programme. 

Planning is well underway for a future of fire data conference to take 

place in June 2022. This will be an opportunity to share 

developments in the programme and those of its strategic partners, 

explore the art of the possible, build networks and communities, and 

to hear from others both within and external to the FRS about 

innovations in data and analytics. 

Digital Priorities As the data-focused work develops at pace, the programme is 

turning its attention to refreshing and focusing down the key priorities 

for the digital element of the programme. At present, these are 

focused around: 

1. Strategy: Alignment of digital strategies across key stakeholders, 

primarily NFCC and the Home Office 

2. Standards: Development of professional fire standards to 

standardise and support digital transformation across the UK 

FRS 

3. Engage, Promote, Motivate, Collaborate: At this stage the focus 

is on engaging the UKFRS digital community & fire leadership to 

shape the future priorities for digital across the sector 

4. Building the NFCC Capacity & Capability: early discussions are 

taking place to explore the benefit in reviewing existing NFCC 

structures and establishing a National Digital Lead to help.  

Community Risk Programme 

3.3 The project has made good progress towards delivery of the CRMP toolset with 4 items of 

guidance going live, and both the Definition of Risk proof of concept methodology and the 

Economic and Social Value report being finalised. 

Project Update 

Definition of Risk 

(DoR) 

The DOR project team continues to work with colleagues in PPRU in 

the development of the Other Building Fires (OBF) risk assessment 

methodology and have conducted a gap analysis of national data 

available to deliver this work. The objective of this workstream is to 

deliver an evidence-based risk methodology that will provide a 

relative risk rating or 'initial risk score' for Protection colleagues. The 

team will work with the recently formed PPRU Working Group to 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 7 of 11 
 

 
    

develop the consequence categorisation for this work. The project is 

cognisant of the work underway in PPRU to review current 

inspection frameworks/guidance. 

Work is also underway to deliver a risk assessment methodology for 

Road Traffic Collisions (RTC). To date the team have been 

identifying nationally available data to begin modelling for RTCs, 

including engagement with Department for Transport, Highways 

England, UKRO and others. Two working groups will support the 

development of the RTC methodology, one made up of FRS subject 

matter experts and the other composed of external SMEs including 

the organisations named above.  

An output of the POC workstream was the delivery of risk scores for 

England at both an LSOA and UPRN level by contractors ORH. The 

NFCC are the owners of this data, which is currently being 

transferred from ORH to the Data Portal for storage. Discussions 

around how this data may be used are yet to take place at a project 

board and programme board level. 

The Proof-of-Concept Report (Domestic Dwelling Fires Risk 

methodology) requires branding before it can be published on the 

UKFRS website. This work is currently on hold pending budget 

reallocation by the NFCC. The delivery of training workshops on the 

methodology as requested by FRS colleagues is also currently on 

hold.  

The project has received interest from fire service colleagues 

internationally in the methodology.  

Community Risk 

Management 

Planning (CRMP) 

Guidance  

The guidance project has four pieces of approved guidance that 

became live on both NFCC and UK FRS website in March, prior to 

the CRP Round Table events held at West Midlands FRS on 10th 

and 17th March. The guidance can be used as web-based or by 

downloadable PDF.  

The Round Table events had both in-person and online attendance 

and online polls taken during these indicated that over 95% of the 

participating FRS planned to use the guidance in developing and 

updating their CRMPs. 

Evaluation Guidance, which is guidance for the evaluation of the 

CRMP development process, and not of its impact, has had an early 

review by TWG and that feedback has been incorporated for 

discussion with the external consultant to update accordingly. The 

updated draft will be brought to CRP Guidance Board for approval to 

go to wider consultation.  

Hazard Identification, Risk Analysis, and Decision making guidance 

are in draft scope and will be developed in-house. These will go to 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

https://www.nationalfirechiefs.org.uk/CRP-Products


   

Page 8 of 11 
 

 
    

September Board for final approval. Each of these pieces of 

guidance intersects Definition of Risk Guidance and work underway 

with PPRU, and these groups are working together to refine these 

pieces of guidance and provide relevant signposting.  

The Consultation Institute, which developed the Stakeholder and 

Public Engagement Guidance, has invited Project Manager Paquita 

Lamacraft to make a presentation to their annual conference on 6th 

October, and it has been agreed that where possible to do so, this 

will showcase case studies from English and devolved 

administrations on use of the guidance.  

Economic and 

Social Value of 

the UK FRS 

(ESV) 

The ESV report is being finalised and reviewed by the Home Office.  

Competencies for 

Risk Managers 

Exact Consulting delivered draft Competencies Frameworks that 

were approved by the Project and Programme Board for formal 

consultation with the sector in Q1.  

Evaluation of 

FRS Interventions 

The Project Board finalised procurement requirements for a tender 

process that was launched in Q4 to identify a contractor to deliver a 

'gap analysis' of the current state of evaluation amongst UKFRS.  

The responses to the tender will be reviewed by the project board 

and a supplier selected in May. 

Consultation, 

Research and 

Evaluation 

Officers (CREO) 

Following a presentation by the Guidance PM on the Evaluation 

Guidance (evaluation of the CRMP process – not of impact and 

outcomes), CREO members decided to hold two workshops on the 

CRMP: one with in-person attendance, and the other online. This 

gives both exposure of the Guidance and the opportunity for 

feedback from SMEs. 

Prevention Programme 

3.4 The programme has continued to work on its plans for 2022/23 with stakeholders including 

the Home Office, the Prevention Committee, programme and project board members.  

3.5 The Prevention Programme Board met on 30 March 2022 with representatives from Fire and 

Rescue Services, Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA), Home Office and 

the NFCC.  The NFCC Prevention newsletter was produced and circulated in March 2022.  

Project Update 

Person-Centred 

Approach Project 

 

The Person-Centred Framework project has completed a self-

assessment of the work progressed in 2021/22. The Online Home 

Fire Safety Check has 8 Fire and Rescue Services live, 16 

onboarding and 13 interested. We have the Fire Minister’s 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 9 of 11 
 

 
    

Endorsement and good feedback from those services who are using 

it. Work is progressing on standard data collection and workforce 

development. A group has been formed with representatives from 4 

FRSs and Public Health leads to scope and complete work on an 

evaluation framework by the end of December 2022. 

The Fire Prevention Awareness Programmes (Fire Kills) multimedia 

advertising campaign has been a success in the view of all 

stakeholders.  The lessons learned from the campaign are being 

shared and discussed amongst partners. They will inform how we 

develop even better fire safety campaigns in the future.  

Another key area of focus for discussion at the Programme Board 

was Safeguarding and the importance of the work the NFCC 

Safeguarding Strategic Lead, Donna Bentley, has been progressing 

with the Home Office in relation to our DBS Business Case.   

We have commissioned Nottingham Trent University as our 

academic partner to work with us on research into Mental Health and 

Fire Risk. Our survey with Fire and Rescue Services on this theme 

had a response of 99% with some key messages to support this 

research which will be completed by the end of June 2022. 

 

4. NFCC Protection Policy and Reform Unit (PPRU) Update 

4.1 This section provides a high-level overview of key pieces of work currently being undertaken 

by the PPRU. 

Protection Uplift Grant  

4.2 As of the end of Q3 the overall spend against the Protection Uplift grants was just over 

£9.5m out of the total £24m.   

4.3 The Minister for Building Safety and Fire wrote to Chief Fire Officers in April to ask for their 

‘top 3 best practices’ in regard to protection uplift. The deadline for these submissions to 

Home Office was 28 April 2022 and PPRU will share any learning.  

4.4 The PPRU continue to engage with Government to secure further funding for FRS Protection 

functions and subsequently a further £12m has been confirmed as available to FRS 2022/23 

Building Safety Bill  

4.5 The Building Safety Bill, having received agreement by the House of Commons and House 

of Lords, received Royal Assent on 28 April 2022.  

4.6 A range of working groups and workshops continue to meet under the Joint Regulators 

Group (JRG) Board. The JRG, which is chaired by the HSE and includes DLUHC, the Home 

Office, Local Authority Building Control, NFCC and the LGA continues to work towards more 

detailed proposals for how the new Building Safety Regulator will work in practice.  

4.7 Following the launch of Planning Gateway 1 in August 2021, the PPRU have become aware 

of a number of direct approaches by the HSE to FRS with consultation requests on gateway 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 10 of 11 
 

 
    

1 applications. The PPRU had requested to act as an intermediary in order to monitor the 

volume of work and provide consistent advice and guidance. Services have been briefed to 

share details of any direct approaches with the PPRU. 

4.8 Early feedback seems to indicate that the original policy intent may be being stretched in 

practice by HSE with detailed design information being asked for at planning stage. PPRU 

understands that the original intent of PGO was to only deal with fire service access and 

water supply issues with regard to land use planning. HSE seem to be following the 

approach outlined in the London plan.  

4.9 As part of the quarterly Protection Uplift returns PPRU are now collating from each FRS the 

details of all residential buildings in Interim Measures, on behalf of the Department for 

Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. 

4.10 A review of the Simultaneous Evacuation Guidance (SEG) began in quarter 3 (October – 

December). Workshops have been held with stakeholders and to date over 400 comments 

have been received. These are being reviewed with a view to publishing revised guidance in 

quarter 1 (April – June) 2022.  

4.11 The Guidance Technical Group (GTG) has completed consultations with FRSs on the Home 

Office series of Short Guides, with the comments and recommendations now returned to 

Government to write revised versions ahead of commencement of the Fire Safety Act.  

4.12 The PPRU continue to work with Home Office officials to refine proposals to meet the GTI 

recommendation around PEEPs. 

Fire Safety Act  

4.13 At the time of drafting, it is anticipated that the Fire Safety Act will be commenced in mid-

May. PPRU are preparing supporting communication materials to assist FRS.   

Building Risk Review  

4.14 The Ministerial commitment to assess all high-rise residential buildings by the 31 December 

2021 was met and a letter has been sent to services thanking them for their work, 

recognising the additional burden this brought to protection departments.  

4.15 An initial analysis has been provided to the Minister, and the public version of the report is 

now in the process of being reviewed by stakeholders and will be brought to the Fire 

Protection Board. We intend that we will share the report with FRSs prior to any publication. 

Service Delivery  

4.16 The Virtual Learning Environment for Fire Safety regulators has seen an increase in the 

number of registered accounts, completed courses, and CPD hours logged over the quarter 

January – March 2022.  

4.17 PPRU continue to drive engagement with the platform, targeting those with the lowest 

activity, and gather feedback from users to improve functionality.  

4.18 The Competency Framework for Fire Safety Regulators consultation has now closed, and a 

review of responses has commenced. The comment resolution and review is expected to 

take between 6-12 months.  

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



   

Page 11 of 11 
 

 
    

4.19 Thanks to funding secured through the Regulators Pioneer Fund, West Sussex Fire & 

Rescue in partnership with the PPRU have produced an interactive Fire Safety Awareness 

tool for responsible persons (RPs). This is hosted on the NFCC website.   

4.20 The PPRU held a national Protection Engagement forum on 29-30 March. The forum was a 

successful occasion with attendance from nearly all FRS which provided lots of opportunities 

for sharing learning, updating FRS on the PPRU’s work, and building relationships. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5





 

20 May 2022 FSB Progress Report for Fire Services Management Committee May 2022 Page 1 of 4 

Title of Paper Fire Standards Progress Report  

Decision or Information For information 

Title and Date of 

Meeting 

LGA Fire Services Management Committee 

20th May 2022 

Attachments None 

 

Summary 

This paper provides members of the LGA Fire Services Management Committee (FSMC) with a summary of 

the progress on the Fire Standards. The Fire Standards Board last met formally on 8th December 2021, held a 

workshop in February 2022 and they next meet formally on 15 June 2022.  

Recommendations 

Members are asked to: 

• note the contents of this report for information;  

• provide ongoing support to officers in enabling and empowering them to engage in the development 

and implementation of the Fire Standards both in production and when published; and  

• encourage the monitoring of the benefits of the Fire Standards in their services. 

Current Status 

There are now ten approved and published Fire Standards which are available on the Fire Standards Board 

(FSB) website and shown in the timeline figure below.  

 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

https://www.firestandards.org/approved-standards/


20 May 2022 FSB Progress Report for Fire Services Management Committee May 2022 Page 2 of 4 

The second phase of Fire Standards development is progressing with the remaining standards underway 

shown on the timeline diagram below, with a summary of the current status by standard: 

 

  

Development Update  

Emergency Preparedness and Resilience 

• Consultation on this standard completed in February 2022. 

• Quality Assurance will be completed 23rd May and submitted to FSB for final approval. 

• Expected publication by 31 May 2022. 

Data Requirements and Management 

• Consultation on this standard completed in May 2022.  

• Analysis of the consultation responses will take place during May to agree any revisions. 

• It is anticipated the post-consultation standard will then be shared with FSB for approval for quality 
assurance in June 2022. 

• Expected publication by July 2022. 

Leadership and People Fire Standards 

• Following a period of development and peer review, it has been agreed two complimentary Fire 
Standards would be developed to cover the following; 

o Service Leadership (formerly “well-led” organisation) – setting out what an organisation that is 
well-led would look like and responsibilities and expectations of operational leaders  

o Leading and Developing People – setting out what good recruitment, development and 
management of people looks like to achieve a competent and motivated workforce  

• Draft Fire Standards were considered by the board and the peer group during February and March 2022, 
the conclusions of which were that further revisions would be required.  

• Revision work is underway along with benchmarking against leadership industry standards aiming to 
produce pre-consultation drafts by June 2022. 

• Consultation is then anticipated to commence by the end of June. 

• Subject to consultation feedback, it is expected these standards will be published by December 2022. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



20 May 2022 FSB Progress Report for Fire Services Management Committee May 2022 Page 3 of 4 

Remaining Areas for Consideration 

A third phase of development work is currently being scheduled, the figure below shows the areas being 

considered for possible Fire Standards. The areas in red are being addressed through the Leadership and 

People Fire Standards.  

 

It will not necessarily follow that a single Fire Standard will be developed for each activity listed above, but 

these are the areas of activity that remain outstanding. Discovery work and research in each area will help 

clarify and confirm what standards may be developed in a third phase. Proposals will be made to the FSB in 

June 2022.  

It is anticipated that the full suite of standards will total approximately 21. 

The FSB has a defined periodic review process in place following publication of a Fire Standard but can 

initiate an exceptional review should the need arise.  

Implementation support 

The FSB, through the NFCC Fire Standards and Implementation Teams, will be continuing to support services 

as they work to achieve the Fire Standards. Implementation tools are provided with all published Fire 

Standards.  

Impact and Benefits Realisation  

The FSB are keen to understand the impact of the Fire Standards now that the first standards have been 

published. As part of both the development process and the consultation on each Fire Standard we ask 

services about potential impacts.  

The FSB will be undertaking engagement activity with services during the summer 2022 to help better 

understand impacts and review progress to date.   

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



20 May 2022 FSB Progress Report for Fire Services Management Committee May 2022 Page 4 of 4 

Background notes for information 

The Fire Standards Board (FSB) is responsible for the identification, organisation, development and 

maintenance of professional standards for fire and rescue services in England. Led by an independent Chair 

and Vice Chair, membership of the Board includes the NFCC, employers (both the LGA and the APCC) and the 

Home Office.  

The LGA representative on the Board is Cllr Nick Chard. 

The FSB continues to meet regularly to review the progress made on Fire Standards development. Its next 

meeting is scheduled for 15 June 2022.  

Given the various stages of development required and the time needed for engagement with services in the 

early stages, as well as through formal consultation, development work and publications are staggered. This 

is primarily done to align capacity and resources in a considered way, but also to pace the rate at which 

standards are released to services.  

Once approved, Fire Standards are shared on the Fire Standards Board website. 

Services should now be aware of the requirements being placed upon them through these Fire Standards. 

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) will be referencing the 

standards in their inspection arrangements and therefore services should be prepared to evidence their 

progress towards achieving them.  

The Fire Standards Board would welcome and appreciate the support of fire authority chairs and members 

in: 

1. Ensuring their services are enabled to engage in Fire Standards by releasing their subject matter 

experts to support development work and peer review through the NFCC where appropriate and 

feasible. 

2. Responding to the Fire Standards consultations as they are published; and, 

3. Supporting activities to achieve those Fire Standards through implementation once approved and 

published. 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6

https://www.firestandards.org/


 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

 
 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Fire Services Management Committee Update Paper 

 

Purpose of report 

For information. 

 

Summary 

The report outlines issues of interest to the Fire Services Management Committee not 

covered under other items on the agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Lucy Ellender 

Position:   Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   07917 833058  

Email:    Lucy.Ellender@local.gov.uk 

 

  

 

 

Recommendation 

That members of the Committee note the report. 

Actions 

Officers to continue to provide updates to members. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

 
 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Fire Services Management Committee Update Paper 

LGA Annual Fire Conference 2022 

1. The LGA Annual Fire Conference took place 15th - 16th March in Gateshead, Newcastle, 

this was the first in-person LGA Conference since Covid restrictions were lifted. 

1.1. The theme for the Conference was “Delivering Transformation”. Lord Stephen 

Greenhalgh and Sir Thomas Windsor discussed the Government’s Fire reform 

programme. Workshops covered sector-led improvement, climate change, EDI in 

the fire and rescue sector and workforce engagement and Effective Scrutiny and 

oversight of Fire Services. And plenary sessions focussed on people, efficiency, and 

effectiveness. 

1.2. There were 185 delegates in attendance of which 39 returned completed feedback 

forms. 94.8% of respondents were either very or fairly satisfied with the conference 

overall, with the remaining stating they were neither satisfied nor dissatisfied.  

1.3. 92.3% said the conference met their needs and 86.5% said it provided them with 

information that they will use in their organisation.  

1.4. Written feedback was also positive and highlighted a good variety of content and 

speakers. When asked what could be improved some respondents addressed a 

need for more delegate interaction during sessions and greater use of case studies.  

Fire and Rescue Leadership Essentials 

2. The dates for the next Fire and Rescue Leadership Essentials course have been 

confirmed and will take place Tuesday 12 July – Wednesday 13 July at Warwick 

University.  

2.1. Free to all Members, this course aims to provide an induction to the fire sector and is 

a great opportunity to network with other fire members, so new fire authority 

members are being particularly encouraged to attend. By the end of the course, 

delegates will have had the opportunity to:  

2.2. Develop a comprehensive understanding of the fire sector, including clarity on duties 

and responsibilities Develop skills around leadership in fire and rescue authorities 

(FRAs). 

2.3. Develop skills around leadership in fire and rescue authorities (FRAs). 

2.4. Gain a thorough understanding of scrutiny and governance in FRAs and practical 

skills to apply that understanding. 

2.5. Improve knowledge of the key strategic issues facing the sector, including fire 

reform, building safety, the fire inspections regime and issues around culture, 

inclusion and diversity in the fire sector. 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 7

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Services Management Committee 

20 May 2022 

 

 

 
 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

2.6. Improve knowledge of the key strategic issues facing the sector, including fire 

reform, building safety, the fire inspections regime and issues around culture, 

inclusion and diversity in the fire sector. 

 

Fire Inclusion and Diversity Member Champions Network  

 

3. The Fire and Diversity Member Champions Network reconvened virtually on 24 March 

2022. The network brings together elected representatives who are responsible for 

diversity and inclusion issues in their fire and rescue authorities. 

 

3.1. The group heard from Alex Johnson, Chief Fire Officer at South Yorkshire FRA who 

delivered a thought-provoking presentation about her experiences in the sector 

including the barriers she has faced and the work she has been doing to remove 

barriers for others in the sector. 

4. The next meeting is scheduled for Friday 10 June, taking place in a Hybrid format at the 

LGA offices. The exact timings are to be confirmed but we welcome all Fire Commission 

and FSMC members who may wish to attend. 

 

Outside bodies update 

5. HMICFRS – Consultation on Round 3 of inspection: On Monday 9 May HMICFRS wrote 

to fire authorities and services regarding their consultation on round 3 of inspection. The 

consultation is open until 6 June. The LGA will respond to the consultation.   

6. HMICFRS External Reference Group (ERG): In early May the Inspectorate held its 

External reference Group with the sector. The Group is chaired by HMI Roy Wilsher and 

discusses a range of issues on inspection, including findings from the tranches, updating 

of the inspection programme  

7. ESMCP Fire Customer Group: The Fire Customer Group has continued to meet to 

discuss the Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme. We hope to 

provide a further update at the July FSMC meeting. 

8. Strategic Resilience Board: On 19 April the Strategic Resilience Board met. The Board 

discussed a range of issues on resilience across the UK.  

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk




Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 8





Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 9





Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 10





Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 10





Document is Restricted

Page 91

Agenda Item 11




	Agenda
	4 Building Safety update
	5 National Fire Chiefs Council update
	6 Fire Standards Board update
	7 FSMC update
	8 Workforce update
	9 Building Safety - Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans
	10 Fit for the Future
	Appendix A - DRAFT Fit for the Future_Revised May 2022

	11 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 March 2022

